#### DRAFT

## DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM (DBEDT)

# MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY-BASED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (CBED) ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING

# TUESDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2024, AT 10:00 A.M. No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 South Hotel Street, 5<sup>th</sup> Floor Conference Room Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

AND VIA VIRTUAL APPLICATION ZOOM: VIDEO/AUDIO CONFERENCE

## Advisory Members Present were:

Karen Chang Barr

- Advisory Council Member (Oahu)

Matthew Loke
- Department of Agriculture (*Ex-Officio*)

Roberta Melton
- Advisory Council Member (Kauai)

Josephine (Poni) Askew
- Office of Hawaiian Affairs (*Ex-Officio*)

Jennifer Wilkinson
- Advisory Council Member (Hawaii/Kona)

Mark Ritchie For
- Department of Business, Economic

Dennis Ling (*Ex-Officio*)
- Development & Tourism (DBEDT)

#### Guests:

Lisa Pakele - INPEACE

Lauren Primiano - Office of Planning & Sustainable Development

Lei Riedel - Pakini Loan Fund

Will Smith - Hawaii Small Business Development Center

#### Staff:

Elisa Amemiya - Attorney General's Office

Timothy Tiu - DBEDT Jason Ushijima - DBEDT Selma Malcolm - DBEDT

#### Apologies:

Nancy Elvira Lo (Chair) - Advisory Council Member (Oahu)
Jane Horike - Advisory Council Member (Hawaii/Hilo)
Colleen McAluney - Advisory Council Member (Oahu)
Teena Rasmussen - Advisory Council Member (Maui)

#### **CALL TO ORDER:**

Mr. Ritchie called the meeting to order on Tuesday, October 15, at 10:00 a.m. All members and guests participated via ZOOM.

#### Welcome Current Council Members and Introduction of any Guests:

Mr. Ritchie welcomed all present. He then announced that he will officially be DBEDT's Ex-Officio in place of Mr. Dennis Ling.

A roll call vote was conducted, and all members indicated that they were alone at their respective locations.

## **OLD BUSINESS:**

## Approval of Minutes of May 21, 2024:

Minutes of the May 21, 2024, meeting were distributed and reviewed by Council. Mr. Ritchie asked if there were any comments and/or corrections to the Minutes. There were none and he asked for a motion to approve the Minutes.

Motion was made by Mr. Loke and seconded by Ms. Melton to approve the Minutes of May 21, 2024 meeting, as presented.

A roll call vote was taken with the following Council members approving the motion: Ms. Barr, Mr. Loke, Ms. Melton, Ms. Askew, Ms. Wilkinson and Mr. Ritchie.

Motion to adopt the May 21, 2024, Minutes was approved unanimously.

#### <u>Update on Grant for Micro-Lending - Ms. Lei Riedel, Director, Pakini Loan Fund:</u>

Ms. Riedel reported that the Pakini Loan Fund received a \$50,000 grant from the DBEDT/CBED and disbursed the funds as loans to three (3) companies. All three companies are Native Hawaiian-owned and registered in the Waianae Moku as entities.

The companies that received the loans from the Pakini Loan Fund are; 1) Ho'omana Pono, LLC - received a loan of \$10,000 which was used to hire heavy equipment and operators to clear out two acres of property for agriculture and affordable housing units (50/50). This company employs two full-time staff and supports advocacy in the legal system. 2) KC Construction, LLC - offers home and commercial construction services; employs two full-time staff and contracts with up to five sub-contractors depending on their projects. KC Construction, LLC received a loan of \$20,000 that was used for working capital. 3) Costa Customs, LLC is a mobile auto welding service, that employs one full-time staff and received a loan of \$20,000 to purchase a new welding generator and to repair an existing work vehicle. Ms. Reidel also reported that Costa Customs, LLC has been working in collaboration with a couple of other Pakini Loan Fund recipients on other projects.

Mr. Ritchie thank Ms. Reidel for her presentation.

## <u>Update on Made in Maui County Festival – November 1-2, 2024:</u>

Mr. Ritchie stated that in 2023, DBEDT/CBED provided a grant totaled \$60,000 to the Maui Chamber of Commerce to pay for all the exhibitors fees at the Made in Maui County Festival due to the wildfire. Also, that in 2024, DBEDT/CBED will be contributing \$10,000 to sponsor the Festival, as is customary.

## **Public Testimony**:

There was no public testimony.

#### **NEW BUSINESS:**

#### 1) Lisa Pakele - INPEACE:

Mr. Ritchie invited Ms. Lisa Pakele, Program Director, INPEACE to provide update/metrics on the INPEACE companies that participated in the Made In Hawaii Festival. Mr. Ritchie then stated that in the past, DBEDT/CBED sponsored some of INPEACE's companies to attend the Made In Hawaii Festival on Oahu.

Ms. Pakele said she appreciates the opportunity and the support DBEDT/CBED has provided their Center for Entrepreneurship over the past four (4) years which has allowed their Native Hawaiian-owned businesses to take their products to market at the Made In Hawaii Festival. She thanked DBEDT/CBED for the assistance.

Ms. Pakele reported that the Center for Entrepreneurship was able to bring 14 businesses to the 2024 Made in Hawaii Festival. Out of the 14 businesses, DBEDT/CBED's funding covered the booth and event fees for five (5) of the companies to attend the event. Ms. Pakele reported that INPEACE also provided additional support to all the businesses that participated in the festival, including monthly peer networking, workshops, one-on-one coaching, marketing, etc., and that DBEDT/CBED supported those companies as well through social media platforms and press releases.

The names of the five (5) businesses that DBEDT/CBED sponsored are: The Keiki Department, Keha Hawaii, and Kaulana Mahina; all first-time Festival participants. Hooked Up Hawaii and Kickin' Sweets were the other two that benefitted by attending the Festival for a second time. Ms. Pakele stated that the Center for Entrepreneurship continues to provide ongoing and additional support to the companies such as peer networking, workshops, one-on-one coaching, marketing, onsite support-set up, press releases, etc.

Ms. Pakele stated that the total sales for the five (5) exhibitors DBEDT/CBED supported at the Festival were \$115,425. The five (5) companies continue to grow and are now expanding their product lines and looking for additional

support.

Mr. Ritchie stated that he's hoping that those companies will take advantage of other DBEDT programs to help them grow, i.e., HiSTEP export development, Enterprise Zones to reduce taxes as well as other programs with our resource partners.

Ms. Pakele expressed her appreciation for all the support she received from DBEDT/CBED and also for the opportunity to attend the Council meeting. Mr. Ritchie expressed Mahalo nui loa to her and noted that he's looking forward to continuing to work with her and INPEACE in the future.

At 10:29 a.m., Ms. Melton left the meeting.

Ms. Amemiya advised that if quorum has been lost, then the meeting is technically canceled but testimonies and presentations are allowed from guests. She also stated that technically, if there were anything to be deliberated or voted on, they should be recorded and presented at the next meeting to be deliberated and voted on. Mr. Ritchie said there was nothing to be deliberated or voted on.

# 2) <u>Update on Hawaii Small Business Fair at Leeward Community College – September 28, 2024 – Mr. Jason Ushijima:</u>

Mr. Ushijima reported on the Hawaii Small Business Fair (HI-SBJ) that was held on September 28, 2024, from 7:30am to 1:30pm at the Leeward Community College. He stated that the fair was a collaborative effort between DBEDT, City and County of Honolulu, Leeward Community College, INPEACE and the Pacific Gateway Center. Also that the event was free and open to all local entrepreneurs. Mr. Ushijima advised that DBEDT's/CBED's reason for supporting the HI-SBF was to promote the formation and growth of community-based businesses in Hawaii.

Mr. Ushijima also reported that there were 310 online registrants and 70 walk-in participants at the Fair. There were 23 classes and workshops covering key business topics including human resources, trademarks, e-commerce, financing, accounting, marketing and how to create a business plan. Mr. Ushijima said there were 32 exhibitors that represented various support organizations that participants at the Fair were able to meet and network with.

Mr. Ushijima stated that the media coverage before, during and after the HI-SBF was huge. There were the KHON Morning News, Pacific Business News, the Rick Hamada Radio Show and the HNN Nightly News, etc. Mr. Ritchie thanked Mr. Ushijima for his presentation and then noted that it was really a great event on a Saturday morning.

# 3) Status of EDA Statewide Economic Development District Designation (EDD) - Ms. Lauren Primiano, Special Plans Project Manager, Office of Planning and Sustainable Development:

Mr. Ritchie invited Ms. Primiano to report on the status of the EDA statewide Economic Development District (EDD) Designation. Ms. Primiano noted that the Office of Planning and Sustainable Development (OPSD) is a sister agency to DBEDT. She noted that she was thankful and excited for the opportunity to share with the meeting how an EDD Designation and an Economic District Designation can unlock federal funds to advance Hawaii's economic future.

Ms. Primiano reported that the EDA has been an important source of funding for economic development in Hawaii and also for capitalizing the CBED revolving loan fund. Also, that the EDA's main programs including the Economic Adjustments Assistance Program which capitalizes the revolving loan fund are restricted to geographic areas, i.e., specifically, economically distressed areas. This includes having an unemployment rate of at least one percentage point higher than the national average or a per capita income of 80 percent or less than the national average. She noted that this creates challenges for a statewide program as well as countywide programs and projects.

Ms. Primiano expressed that the EDAs' programs are wonderful to work with and there are some great opportunities to support economic development in Hawaii but accessing the funds for statewide programs is a real challenge and it is not only because our state is not experiencing widespread economic distress.

Ms. Primiano advised that an EDD designation essentially allows a multicounty designated region to be preapproved by the EDA for funding eligibility. Also that the pre-approvement is based on two arguments: 1) the need to make the case for a widespread economic distress across the entire region; 2) need to demonstrate how the economies of the designated region are interconnected, i.e., a project located in an area that doesn't meet the distress criteria can still provide a substantial direct benefit to an area that does.

Ms. Primiano stated that the Office of Planning submitted a designation request to the EDA for a statewide economic development district which comprises all five (5) of Hawaii counties including Kalawao on Molokai. She said once the designation is approved, it will provide a mechanism for locating funding/projects/businesses anywhere in the State as long as the case can be made that the project provides a substantial benefit to a community that does meet the distress criteria in a census tract or neighboring county, depending on the scale of the project or business.

Ms. Primiano advised that one of the conditions for an EDA designation is that the EDD needs to have an organizational backing, dedicated staff and a

governing board. This is not only to support ongoing planning and coordination within the district but also to strengthen capacity within the region to implement the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) which is a 5-year plan that is required by the EDA in order for a region to have access to its funding programs. To fulfill that role, Ms. Primiano explained that the OPSD is setting up the Hawaii Regional Economic Stewardship and Advancement Program as well as the board that comprises State and County leadership, county economic development and workforce development board, the union representation, the University of Hawaii, among others. She said this program will focus on research, planning outreach and technical assistance and tracking and evaluation and coordinating these activities with the CBED program will be crucial as we move forward.

Ms. Primiano also gave a status update on the Hawaii EDD Designation Process. She stated that OPSD submitted the statewide EDD designation application and established eligibility by completing the 2023 statewide CEDS which has been approved by the EDA. OPSD has committed to a dedicated program and staffing to fulfill all the requirements of an EDA designation. Ms. Primiano said that the OPSD is in the process of finalizing a board through an intergovernmental partnership agreement with the counties. Ms. Primiano also stated that they received tremendous support from the congressional delegation as well as EDA leadership on all levels and that their request is currently under review by the EDA Seattle Regional Office. It is currently pending few more signatures on their intergovernmental partnership agreement with the counties which will formalize the board as well as advance the request over to EDA headquarters for final approval. She stated that OPSD is optimistic that it will be approved in the very near future and they are looking forward to working with the DBEDT/CBED program and bringing that to fruition and carrying that work forward. She then thanked DBEDT/CBED for the opportunity to attend the meeting.

Mr. Ritchie stated that when DBEDT/CBED applied for the initial funding from EDA, it was during COVID when the whole USA was considered a disaster area and DBEDT/CBED didn't have to make the distinction by census tracts, etc. Also that DBEDT/CBED has been tracking what the Office of Planning and Sustainability has been doing to get that designation so DBEDT/CBED can apply for more EDA funding on a statewide basis.

Mr. Ritchie thanked Ms. Primiano for her report and noted that her hard work and dedication to the program is appreciated. Mr. Ritchie then announced that Ms. Primiano's presentation will be discussed in a future meeting when there is quorum.

# 4) <u>Update on CBED Loans, Loan Metrics and Revolving Loan Fund Dashboard Mr. Mark Ritchie:</u>

Mr. Ritchie presented an overview of the CBED Loans. He explained that the "Risk Rating" for FY2022 was a "B" then improved to an "A" for FY2023.

3	•
<u>CBED Annual Report</u> - Mr. Ritchie will be working on the CBED Advisory Council annual report. Copies will be sent to legislators as well as Council members.	
NEXT MEETING: TBA	
ADJOURNMENT:	
The meeting ended at 10:52 am.	
Respectfully submitted,	
For Mont	January 13, 2025
Nancy Elvira Lo, Chair	Date